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The present First United Methodist Church at 101 East Main Street
was completed in 1872 and dedicated in November of that year. The

Q.ﬂ W esijiewa

by Patricia Higginbotham and Ralph W. Strickland

building was originally constructed with a steeple.

and settlement. By 1802 the land near
Westfield was ready for sale, and people
began to move into the area from eastern
New York. The first actual settlement
began at Cross Roads, now Westfield,
founded by James McMahan, a man of
Scotch-Irish descent. Many of the new
settlers were of this same Scotch-Irish
descent, and as a consequence were
Presbyterians. Therefore, the earliest
sermons preached at area meetings were
Calvinist in doctrine.

By 1808, however, other Church organ-
izations had put down roots in the area. In
addition to the Presbyterians, there were
Baptists, Congregationalists, and by the
establishment of the Holland Purchase
Circuit of the Philadelphia Conference,
Methodists. The first clergyman assigned
to the new circuit was Rev. George Lane.
He established in 1821 the first organ-
ization of the Methodist Church in West-
field, a class consisting of Mr. and Mrs.
Brainard Spencer, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph
Clark, Mr. and Mrs. Reuben Peck, and
others not recorded. Up until this time the
circuit rider preached where and when he
found Methodists gathered, on an
irregular basis, and more often than not,
under no roof other than the leafy green of
the forest clearings.

The coming of Dr. Lawton Richmond to
the Cross Roads was a very important
event in the history of Westfield
Methodism. This man, a practicing,
licensed physician, was also the first
permanent preacher to Westfield
Methodists. Dr. Richmond built a home on
the west side of town. In 1830, when the
Methodist Congregation elected to build a
Meeting House, Dr. Richmond moved his
home to the rear of the lot to allow the
Meeting House to be built on the front of
the property. This lot was located on the
west side of the creek, as nearly as can be
determined, on West Main Street and east
of Chestnut. Later Dr. Richmond moved to
a new house, and his original home
became the Methodist parsonage.

The first Meeting House was built
largely by its own members. According to
John Herron, who was a member in boy-
hood and knew the early members, the
beams were hand hewn in the woods and
hauled to the site by teams of oxen. Some
of the members dug the foundation while
others laid the stones. Some did carpentry.
Some shaved the hand-made pine shingles
for the roof. Since the Methodists were ina
sense underdogs in the community, many
non-members were happy to help the
rivals of the Presbyterians, whom they
considered aristocratic and prosperous.

One interesting fact about this
laboriously-constructed Meeting House
was that it had two doors, one for the use of
women and one for men. The sexes were
also segregated inside the church. The
feeling was in those days that the women
were a distraction for the men and should
therefere be kept separate.

At this period of Methodist history, the
emphasis was on great simplicity in both
dress and behavior. Women could not
atten@chiurch with flouncy dresses, and,
indeed, even a bow on a bonnet would be
held highly suspect. In this respect the

_Clinton and Maple Streets. This site was a

Westfield Church in 1849, he found the
membership, 130 in number, “in a scat-
tered and disorderly state; cast down and
quite in despair. This state of things was
produced by a variety of causes, some . -
extending back for years.” Rev. Whallon
was informed that in his appointment to
this happy flock he would secure the
erection of a new church building. To the
Rev. Whallon this appeared, “like the
requirement of bricks without straw.”
However, the brave reverend set about his
work, trusting in the Lord, and in due time,
the new church was erected. It was com-
pleted in 1850.

The building is described as 66 feet by 32
feet with a brick foundation, an orna-
mental front, and a 75-foot tower and
dome. It was located on the corner of

matter of considerable controversy at the
time and the conflict presented such diffi-
culties that some of the members did not
follow the congregation into its new home.
1t is not recorded what became of these
malcontents. It must therefore be
assumed that they found their way into
other congregations.

The 1850 edifice was apparently suffi-
ciently elaborate as to be called “Chureh”
rather than “Meeting House.” There is
mention of such interior appointments as
carpeting, and the preceding description
definitely indicates an ornamental ex-
terior. The Methodists were beginning, for
better or for worse, to move away from
their early simplicity. %
The Present 5 3. 2 .
Church Structure A W

By 1870 many changes had taken place. T L
The 1850 building was considered too small
for the growing congregation. The church,
by this time had developed some tradition,
a little history, and a great deal of organ-
izational know-how.

Rev. James E. Chapin, who had been a
minister in the area for a great many
years, was assigned to Westfield in 1870.
He did preparatory work toward a new
edifice for Westfield Methodists.

In 1871, J.C. Scofield was appointed to
the Westfield Ministry. It was at this point
that work on a new church actually began.
The building committee consisted of Dr.
J.C. Gifford, W.T. Hynes, Oris Persons,
and J.H. Towle. Dr. Richmond again
provided a site for the church by moving
his second home back from Main Street to
make frontage available for the church.
And again Dr. Richmond’s home was
utilized as a parsonage.

A 1940 compilation of mermorial gifts
provides biographies of a few of the
members who were active in the church at
the time of the building of the 1872 struc-
ture. It is noted that William Hynes, in
addition to being a member of the building
committee, supported the building effort
so heavily with his personal resources that
his obligations became an embarrassment
to him.

We have record of Emily Taylor, who
helped with the work that the women did
on the new church. . .carpeting, etc. She
was a teacher in the Church School at the
time.

The first “Meeting House’ of the Methodist Episcopal Church of Westfield was located on
West Main Street, east of Chestnut Street. Built in 1830 by church members and their
friends, it served the congregation for 20 years. The building had two doors, one for the use
of men, the other for women.

Construction of the Méthodist’s first Westfield church was completed in 1850. It was located
at the corner of Clinton and Maple Streets. The building - 66 by 32 feet with a brick feun-
dation, an ornamental front and a 75-foot tower and dome - was widely regarded at the time
as the finest church structure in Chautauqua County.

v

The church building was remodelled in 1908 and two gothic towers
replaced the steeple. The educational area of the Church was com-

pletely renovated in 1963 and a large,

added.

employment at The Welch Grape Juice

Company, and that Dr. Welch himself per-
sonally insisted on attendance.

1t was in this elimate that the Methadists
undertook in 1908 a major renovation of
their church building. The trustees at the
time were C.E. Welch, G.S. Dickson, AH.
Harris, E.D. Harrington, W.B. Linsay,
F.B. Lamb, D.J. Jillson, and H. Harden-
burg. These men acted as the building
committee. H.E. Wratton was the general
contractor. The minister at the time was
Rev. E.C. Delaplaine.

The Sunday School area was arranged
on the “Akron Plan” . . . two stories of
classrooms opening around a central
room. A speaker on the podium in the
center could speak to any or all classes at
once. This was, in 1908, the most up-to-date
arrangement for the Sunday School, and
many churches of that vintage have this

§ arrangement or some later modification of

it.

Prior to 1008 there was a small pipe
organ with hand operated bellows in the
sanctuary. C.E. Welch personally
dedicated, at a cost of $5000, a new pipe
organ. A plaque placed on the organ by the
trustees reads, “To the Glory of God and
the sounding of His Praise, this organ is
dedicated by Charles Edgar Welch, 1908.”

Memorial windows added at the time of
the 1908 renovation, and many of the
people in whose memory they were placed
were members who had helped to build the
original building. At the same time, new
pulpit furniture was provided by Mr. and
Mrs. L.W. Chapman.

The steeple had become unsafe, and
would have cost too much to restore. The
architect recommended that it be eli-
minated, and this advice was followed.
The steeple was replaced by the two gothic
towers which embellish the front of the
sanctuary today.

The total expense of the building reno-
vations was $29,371. The total cost of the
refurbishment, including furnishings and
organ was $35,000.

The rededication services were held
from April 20 to April 27, 1908. At that time
there was special organ music, and the
choir also made special presentations. Dr.
Riker of Mt. Union College gave the
opening sermon. The week of services was
closed with an address by Dr. C.M.
Boswell of Philadelphia, Pa.

In 1926 there was more renovation of the
structure. The old “Akron Plan” Sunday
School was converted to two full stories by
adding a floor to the lower story, on top of
which could be laid a floor for the second
story. This, of course, resulted in much
more area for the Sunday School.

At about this time the organ was rebuilt
and electrified, and chimes were donated
by Bessie McDonald. The Steinway grand
piano in the choir loft was a gift of Myrtle
Warren Welch.

The present pulpit replaced the 1908
reading stand in 1931. It was designed by
Alfred Farr and built by the Farr Lumber
Company. Most of the cabinet work was

done by Ford Baxter, an employee of the.

company. The funds were provided by
popular subscription.
In 1933 a celebration marked the 25th

new fellowship hall was

had been built in 1872, The observation that
the property on which the new structure
was to be built cost nearly as much as the
church building did in 1872. and that. the
cost of renovatiing the educational space
was more than double the original cost of
construction of the building in the first
place, cannot be escaped:

It is perhaps unfortunate that, through
the years of the church, only the periods of
hyperactivity are recorded. One finds in
all the materials very little reference to
the quiet times in church history. It is
apparent in the history of the Methodist
Church on Main Street that this congre-
gation has had its ups and its downs, its
fallow as well as fruitful periods. One
wonders how many fine Methodist
ministers led this congregation through
difficult periods such as that described by
J.H. Whallon in 1850. It is obvious that in
the period since the beginnings of this
church, many members have come and
gone, some appearing in the records
sparingly, some not at all. We have no
knowledge of the bulk of the history of the
church simply because no one took the
trouble to write down the daily affairs and
modest activities that build a congre-
gation.

Rev. J.H. Herron, pastor of the West-
field Church in 1877, endeavored to bring
together records of the early history of the
Westfield Church, but even then recog-
nized that the record was incomplete.
Doubtless, as Rev. Herron stated, the
building periods of the church were
periods of spiritual power. This is why
buildings are celebrated, more than for
their physical magnificence. And because
they are a physical presence among us,
and a direct reminder of times past, people
take enough interest in them to keep a
history. If the church had continued to
meet in scattered schoolhouses and a few
private homes we would probably have
even less history recorded than we do.

The lessons from this history of the
building on Main Street should be fairly
clear. The record shows that modern times
are not the only times of conflict and
friction in the church. It shows that the
very earliest Methodists in Westfield were
quite capable of discouragement and
lethargy, and that even then, they
responded to able leadership and a real
need.

The record also shows that no one
minister or layman can take the entire
credit for any accomplishment of the
church, but that strong leaders and good
followers together could accomplish more
than could be dreamed humanly possible.

Westfield, as a community, can be
grateful for the congregations which have
erected the fine church buildings which
can be seen in all sections of the village.
These congregations are the same people
who have through the years used their
spiritual and financial power to make this
town a place we can all be happy and
proud to live in#In other words, good
church buildings, in any community, are
an indication of the kind of leadership that
makes a good community. That is why it is
fitting that we should celebrate the 100th
anniversary of the building on Main Street.
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